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June 20, 1991

Nicholas P. Sipe, Executive Director
Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission
1205 Pendletan Street

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Dear Mr. Sipe:

In a letter to this Office you requested an opinion regarding
the wvalidity of a proposed ruling of the Alcocholic Beverage Control
Commission ABC Ruling 91-14, which deals with alcohol-filled can-
dies. The regulation deals with the question as to whether the sale
of chocolate candies filled with a mixture containing distilled
spirits manufactured for beverage purposes is legal in businesses
other than licensed retail liquor stores. The regulation also deals
with the guestion as to whether these candies may be sold in 1i-
censed retail liquor stores. You indicated that the candies contain
not more than 5% by weight of Kahula, Crown Royal and other brands
of alcoholic liquors and are therefore brands manufactured as alco-
holic beverages.

- The ruling of the Commission stated:

wWwe find no section of South Carolina law that
allows or permits possession or sale in business-
es, other than licensed retail ligquor stores, of
alcoholic liquors manufactured for beverage
purposes, in whatever form offered. ... We rule,
therefore, that although portions of these can-
dies could be called a "food product®', the can-
dies contain alcohol manufactured solely for
beverage purposes. Therefore, the sale of can-
dies containing alcochol is illegal in this
State. Regarding such sales in licensed retail
liquor stores, we rule that Section 61-3-1020
... prohibits the keeping, storing or selling of
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any goods, wares or merchandise other than alco-
holic liguors and wines. The offering or sale
of alcchol-filled chocolates or other candies in
licensed retail stores would, therefore, be
illegal.

Pursuant to Section 61-3-20(1) of the Code, the term "alcoholic
liguors™ as used in Title 61 is defined as

... any spirituous malt, vinous, fermented,
brewed (whether lager or rice beer} or other
liquors or any compound or mixture thereof by
whatever name called or known which contains
alcohol and is used as a beverage, but shall not
extend to:

(a) Wine when manufactured or made for
home consumption and which is not sold
by the maker thereof or by any other
person or

(b} Any beverage declared by statute to be
nonalcoholic or nonintoxicating;

Section 61-3-30 of the Code states that

No provision in this chapter, Chapter 7, or
Article 3 of Chapter 13, shall apply to alcohol
intended for use in the manufacture and sale of
any of the following when they are unfit for
beverage purposes, namely ...

... (3) Flavoring extracts, syrups and food
products ....

Pursuant to Section 61-13-260 of the Code

It shall be unlawful for any person to store or
have 1in possession any alcoholic liguors in his
place of business other than a licensed liquor
store.

By such provision, a "place of business" includes "any place where
goods, wares or merchandise are sold, offered for sale or distribut-
ed, and also places of amusement."



R

Mr. Sipe
Page 3
June 20, 1991

Referencing the above, I am in agreement with your conclusion
that State law does not permit the possession or sale in businesses,
other than a licensed liquor store, of alcoholic 1liquors manufac-
tured for beverage purposes. Therefore, as to the sale of chocolate
candies filled with a mixture containing alcoholic liquors manufac-
tured for beverage purposes, which, as a result, would not come
within the exemptions of Section 61-3-30, I am unaware of any basis
to exempt these candies from the restrictions on the sale of alcchol-
ic liguors. Such a determination is consistent with an opinion of
the Kansas Attorney General, Opinion No. 86-150. As referenced,
Section 61-13-260 of the Code prohibits the storage or possession of
alcocholic liquors in businesses other than licensed liquor stores.

As to whether these candies may be sold in licensed retail
ligquor stores, alcoholic liquors possessed or sold in this State are
subject to a comprehensive and complex regulatory scheme. See,
e.g., Sections 61-5-20, 61-3-990, 6&1~7-10 et seq., 61-13-210 and
61-13-800 of the Code; Article VIII-A, Section 1 of the State Consti-
tution. Opin. of the Atty. Gen. dated August 27, 1984. In particu-
lar, Section 61-3-990 prohibits the sale or possession of alcchelic
liguors in containers or quantities of less than two hundred millili-
ters. I am unaware of any statutory reference to the type packaging
which would be involved 1in the sale of the candies at issue here.
Therefore, candies filled with a mixture containing alcoholic lig-
uors would have to meet requirements for alcoholic liquors general-
ly. Unless these candies would meet all such relevant requirements,
these items could not be so0ld in licensed liquor stores in this
State. 1/

If there is anything further, please advise.
Sincerely,
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Charles H. Kichardson
Assistant Attorney General
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REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

JIE D o

Robert D. Cook
Executive Assistant for Opinions

_1/ As to the proposed ruling itself, I would advise that
consistent with an opinion of this Office dated May 20, 1991, the
Commission's ruling does not have the force and effect of law and is
advisory only since it has not been promulgated pursuant to the
Administrative Procedures Act.



